

# **Educator Effectiveness**

# **Observation and Practice**

Mr. Brian Polito
Superintendent of Schools

Revised July 2022 to include the rating system for professional employees and temporary professional employees pursuant to Pa. Act 13 of 2020.

All revisions derived from the Educator Effectiveness Toolkit on the Pennsylvania Department of Education's Standards Aligned System website located at: https://www.pdesas.org/EducatorFrameworks/EducatorEffectiveness/

## **Review of the Evaluation Process**

# **Original Observation and Evidence Committee**

Sheran Alexander Language Arts Teacher, Central Career and Technical

Jenna Fitch Special Education Teacher, East High School

Richard Gudowski Assistant Principal, Emerson-Gridley

Bea Habursky Executive Director of Human Resources, James E. Barker Educational Center

Greg Henderson President, Erie Education Association

Jeff Hutchinson Assistant Principal, Roosevelt Middle School

Heather Kensill Medal of Honor Project Facilitator, Instructional Specialist, IT

Jeanne Kraus Elementary Teacher, Harding

Bob Merski Special Education Teacher, East, EEA Executive Board Member

Ken Nickson Associate Dean, Northwest PA Collegiate Academy

Kim Olszewski Federal Programs Coordinator, James E. Barker Educational Center

Karin Ryan Principal, Pfeiffer-Burleigh

Valerie Tubbs Art Teacher, Wayne

James Vieira Dean, Northwest PA Collegiate Academy

Barb Zimmer Assistant Principal, Strong Vincent

# **Revisions July 2022\***

\*All revisions derived from the Educator Effectiveness Toolkit on the Pennsylvania Department of Education's Standards Aligned System website located at https://www.pdesas.org/EducatorFrameworks/EducatorEffectiveness/

Nora Dolak Supervisor of Secondary English Language Arts and Social Studies Content

Melanie Miller Supervisor of Elementary Education Content

Holly Northrup Supervisor of Elementary Education Content

Richard Schneider Supervisor of Secondary Math and Science Content

# Table of Contents

Evalua	tion of Educator Effectiveness5
	Entities Subject to Requirements
	Employees Subject to Requirements
	Temporary Professional Employees
Evalua	tion Measures6
	Measures and Weighting
	Interim Evaluations
	Observation and Practice
	Comprehensive Observation
	Differentiated Supervision
	Eligibility
	Building Level Data
	Non-Attribution of Building Level Data
	Transfer Options
	Teacher Specific Data
	Data-Available vs. Non-Data-Available
	IEP Goal Progress
	N-Counts
	LEA Selected Measures
	Performance Goals
Evalua	tion Process
	Rating Scale
	Satisfactory vs. Unsatisfactory
	Performance Improvement Plan
	Rating Frequency
	Professional Employees
	Temporary Professional Employees
	Rating Protocol
	Rating Tools
	Maintaining Records & Reporting Data
	Educator Effectiveness Annual Report
	Training & Professional Development
	Training Requirements
	Professional Development Opportunities

Resources	
Rating Tools	
Rating Tools Conversions	
Frameworks for Observation and Practice	
Approved Alternate Frameworks	
Performance Templates	
References	27
Definitions and Terms	
Statutes and Regulations	
Erie's Public Schools	
Supervision/Evaluation Procedures for Teacher Observations and Practice	31
Appendix A: Forms	36
Awareness Plan	
Meeting Documentation	
Performance Improvement Plan	
Meeting Documentation	
Appendix B: Suggestion of Evidence for Domain 4	41
Appendix C: Frameworks for Observation and Practice and Performance Templates	45
Appendix D: Original Glossary	46
Appendix E: Rating Forms	50

#### **EVALUATION OF EDUCATOR EFFECTIVENESS**

Educator Effectiveness Act 13 was signed into law by Governor Tom Wolf on March 27, 2020, revising the Educator Effectiveness system established under Pa. Act 82 of 2012 (Act 82) for the evaluation of professional employees and temporary professional employees in PreK-12 education.

Noteworthy changes are:

- Increased emphasis on observation and practice
- Streamlined building level data, with a 'challenge multiplier' to account for student poverty
- Expanded flexibility in measuring student performance
- Expanded flexibility in measuring principal performance

## **Entities Subject to Requirements**

Effective July 1, 2021, evaluations of professional employees and temporary professional employees serving as classroom teachers, principals, and non-teaching professionals in commonwealth school districts, area career technology and technical centers, and intermediate units must adhere to the revised rating system for Educator Effectiveness (EE).

Charter schools are not subject to the Educator Effectiveness requirements under Act 13; however, charter schools may find it useful to incorporate EE measures into their evaluation systems to comply with federal mandate, which requires reporting on the numbers of classroom teachers deemed to be Effective or Ineffective using select EE measures or comparable indicators.

## **Employees Subject to Requirements**

Pursuant to Act 13, there are three types of employees evaluated for Educator Effectiveness.

- Classroom Teachers, defined as: professional employees or temporary professional employees who provide direct instruction to students related to a specific subject or grade level.
- Principals, defined as: building principals, assistant principals, vice principals, directors of career and technical education, or supervisors of special education1.
- Non-Teaching Professionals (NTPs), defined as: educational specialists (including counselors, dental hygienists, home school visitors, instructional technology specialists, nurses, psychologists, social workers, speech and language pathologists), or
- other professional employees or temporary professional employees who provide services and who are not classroom teachers (e.g., instructional coaches, supervisors of curriculum and instruction).

Where a professional employee or temporary professional employee provides direct instruction in addition to other services, the LEA is encouraged to consult with the employee to determine whether to evaluate the employee as a classroom teacher or as a non-teaching professional based on the employee's primary role and responsibilities.

Similarly, LEAs are encouraged to consult with their employees as well as their solicitors when determining how to evaluate staff whose positions are not directly correlated to their areas of certification (e.g., employees holding administrative certificates which allow them to serve as principals but who are utilized as supervisors or in other locally titled positions) or whether to evaluate staff who are licensed but not certificated (e.g., behavior analysts).

## **Temporary Professional Employees**

Although Act 13 amends the measures by which a Temporary Professional Employee (TPE) is evaluated under Article XI of the Pennsylvania Public School Code, the legislation does not alter the existing definition of TPE. Article XI defines the term to mean any individual who has been employed to perform, for a limited time, the duties of a newly created position or of a regular professional employee whose services have been terminated by death, resignation, suspension, or removal. While the definition does not address tenure explicitly, commonwealth case law has held that the distinction between a professional employee and a temporary professional employee is that the former has secured tenure.

LEAs should check with their Human Resource personnel on current local protocols for classifying a professional employee2 as temporary and consult with their solicitors if establishing new policies for the classification of employee status for the purposes of evaluation.

## **EVALUATION MEASURES**

## **Measures and Weighting**

There are five areas in which an employee may be evaluated:

- Observation & Practice
- Building Level Data: Assessment, Growth, Attendance, Graduation Rate
- Teacher-Specific Data: Assessment, Growth, IEP Goals Progress
- LEA Selected Measures, comprised of one or more of the following:
  - Locally developed school district rubrics
  - District-designed measures and examinations
  - Nationally recognized standardized tests
  - Industry certification examinations
  - Student projects pursuant to local requirements
  - Student portfolios pursuant to local requirements

## • Performance Goals

The employee is assigned a rating in each area of evaluation that:

- o Is appropriate to the type of employee evaluated, and4
- o Has available data directly attributable to the employee

The following table delineates, by the type of employee evaluated, the rated areas and significance of each in the annual evaluation:

Professional Employee Evaluated	Observation & Practice	<b>Building Level Data</b>	TSD: Assessments, Growth, IEP Goals Progress	LEA Selected Measures	Performance Goals
Data-Available Classroom Teacher	70%	10%	10% All Measures	10%	-
Non-Data-Available Classroom Teacher	70%	10%	10% IEP Goals Progress only	10%	-
Classroom Teacher w/out Building Level Data	80%	-	10% IEP Goals Progress only	10%	-
Temporary Classroom Teacher	100%	-	-	-	-
Non-Teaching Professional with Building Level Data	90%	10%	-	-	-
Non-Teaching Professional w/out Building Level Data	100%	-	-	-	-
Temporary Non-Teaching Professional	100%	-	-	-	-
Principal/Temp. Principal with Building Level Data	70%	10%	-	-	20%
Principal/Temp. Principal w/out Building Level Data	80%	-	-	-	20%

The required semi-annual evaluation of temporary classroom teachers and temporary non-teaching professionals is comprised of the same measure and weighting as the annual evaluation (i.e., 100% Observation & Practice). For temporary professional employees serving in principal roles, LEAs should consult with their solicitors when determining mid-year application of building level data for semi-annual evaluation.

#### **Interim Evaluations**

A professional employees deemed Unsatisfactory in the last evaluation must be rated at least once a year using the measures and weightings appropriate to the employee, as indicated in the table above. Subsequent ratings during the same evaluation period (i.e., interim evaluations) are not mandated; however, should an LEA elect to perform one, the interim evaluation must be comprised of 70% Observation & Practice and 30% LEA Selected Measures.

For the Observation & Practice rating, the LEA should apply the same domains, weightings, and professional practice models utilized during the prior annual evaluation. For the LEA Selected Measures rating, the LEA should use measure(s) appropriate to the type of professional employee (e.g., Performance Goal benchmarks might serve as a locally developed rubric in the evaluation of a principal) and reflective of the role and responsibility of the professional employee (e.g., student career readiness portfolios might be used in the evaluation of a school counselor).

#### **Observation and Practice**

Most or all of the evaluation of the effectiveness of an employee is based on Observation & Practice. To assist LEAs, the Department has three approved **Educator Effectiveness Frameworks** for observing and assessing employee practice: Classroom Teacher, Principal, and Non-Teaching Professional. The Principal Framework is designed for use in the evaluation of other school leaders and supervisors, as well; and the Non-Teaching Professional (NTP) Framework offers slight modifications in the embedded practice models to assist in rating NTPs with disparate roles and certifications/licensures.

Each framework contains four domains of professional practice and, in each domain, a continuum reflecting the performance expectations for the type of employee for which it was designed. Each of the four domains must be assigned a rating; however, when determining the rating, an evaluator may use any portion or combination of the practice models (i.e., components) within a domain as appropriate to the employee's responsibilities. Suggested discussion prompts and potential sources for evidence of practice to facilitate meaningful conversation during observation are provided at each component level.

The ratings assigned in each of the four domains are adjusted by the weighting attributed to that domain, as indicated in the chart below, and the sum of the adjusted values becomes the Observation & Practice rating. For employees serving in principal roles, the weighting assigned to each domain must be agreed upon by the employee and the evaluator before the start of the evaluation period.

	NON-TEACHING	PRINCIPALS/SCHOOL		
CLASSROOM TEACHERS	Educational Specialists & Other Professionals	Supervisors	LEADERS & SUPERVISORS OF SPECIAL EDUCATION	
Planning & Preparation 20%	Planning & Preparation 25%	Strategic/Cultural Leadership 25%	Strategic/Cultural Leadership 10% - 30%*	
Classroom Environment 30%	Educational Environment 25%	Systems Leadership <b>25</b> %	Systems Leadership 10% - 30%*	
Instruction 30%	Delivery of Service 25%	Leadership for Learning 25%	Leadership for Learning 10% - 30%*	
Professional Responsibilities 20%	Professional Development 25%	Professional & Community Leadership <b>25</b> %	Professional & Community Leadership 10% - 30%*	

<sup>\*</sup> The total of the four domains must equal 100% of the rating for Observation & Practice.

Observations, documented artifacts, other evidence, and findings that provide the basis for determining an employee's level of performance in each of the four domains are to be noted in the employee's record, including dates and times as applicable. An employee may provide the evaluator with evidence and/or documented artifacts demonstrating the employee's performance during the most recent Observation & Practice rating; however, the evaluator has the authority to determine whether the evidence or artifacts provided by the employee are relevant to the current Observation & Practice evaluation.

Evidentiary source materials to inform a rating may include, but are not limited to, any combination of the following items as appropriate for the employee and the employee's placement:

- Notations of professional observations, employee/rater conferences or interviews, or informal observations or visits.
- Lesson plans, unit plans, instructional materials and resources.
- Student work, student records, progress reports and grading.
- Utilization of formative and summative assessments that impact instruction and critiques of lesson plans.
- Agendas and minutes of meetings, programs, courses, or planning sessions.
- Development and implementation of school improvement plans, professional growth programs, in-service programs, student assemblies, safety programs, and other events or programs that promote educational efficacy, health, and safety.
- Budget and expenditure reports.
- Interactions with students and their families (e.g., frequency, methods of communication).
- Communication logs (e.g., emails, letters, notes regarding conversations with parents, staff, students, community members).

- Student surveys and family, parent, school, and community feedback.
- Professional growth (e.g., coursework, staff development, networking, reflection of practice).
- Professional development documentation toward continuance of certification or licensure or both
- Examination of sources of evidence provided by the employee.

For the evaluation of classroom teachers, evaluators may include the use of multiple classroom walk-throughs in an academic year to gather evidence and artifacts, provided specific observations are based only on factors that are present or witnessed by the evaluator during the walk-through. Classroom walk-throughs shall be used to gather evidence in addition to data gathered during one or more comprehensive classroom observations except when defined by a plan of differentiated supervision.

## **Comprehensive Observation**

A comprehensive observation includes:

- A pre-conference, during which the employee and the evaluator review the lesson or service to occur during the observation and adjust the planned activity, where appropriate, based on that discussion.
- A formal observation, which begins prior to the start of the lesson or service and concludes with the evaluator providing the employee a completed observation form.
   Shortly thereafter, the employee should perform a self-assessment and provide a copy to the evaluator.
- A post-conference, held within a reasonable timeframe after the observation and during
  which the evaluator and the employee compare the observation report and the selfassessment. The employee should be encouraged to reflect openly on identified
  opportunities to improve instructional practice and student achievement.

The requirement for a post-conference for a professional employee may be waived for extenuating circumstances if both parties agree and the evaluator places written documentation of the comprehensive observation in the professional employee's file. If the extenuating circumstances are raised by the evaluator, the professional employee cannot receive a rating of Needs Improvement or Failing on the comprehensive observation component of an evaluation. The requirement of a post-conference may not be waived for a temporary professional employee.

Minimally, comprehensive observations should be performed during the evaluation of temporary professional employees, professional employees in the required year of comprehensive observation within a differentiated supervision cycle, and employees assigned to a performance improvement plan.

## **Differentiated Supervision**

Differentiated supervision is an optional system involving an LEA-established multi-year cycle in which a comprehensive observation is completed for one annual rating and other years of the cycle are informed by the collaborative development of individualized goals, learning activities, and measures for the professional employee's growth in one or more of the domains of practice.

The evaluator should consult with the employee when selecting a mode of supervision for alternate years of the cycle and ensuring a rigorous alignment to the framework for evaluation and/or a district or school initiative designed to improve instructional practices and impact student achievement. Differentiated supervision modes might include, but are not limited to:

- Peer Coaching working in dyads or triads to discuss and observe each other's practice, define their professional needs, and develop plans for addressing specifically targeted areas, the evidence to be collected, dates of observation, and opportunities for reflection.
- Self-Directed/Action Research working individually or in small groups to develop a structured, on-going reflection of a practice-related issue and complete a related action research project.
- Portfolio examining one's own practice in relation to the framework for evaluation and to established interest- or needs-based criteria and providing evidence and reflection in a written report and/or documented discussions with colleagues.

A timeline should be set to ensure successful completion of the employee's plan of action, minimally with mid-year and end-of-year reviews during which resources, meeting notes, data collections, observations, and reflections are shared with the supervisor. In addition to this evidence, supervisors should employ multiple strategies throughout each year of differentiated supervision to monitor employee performance and inform the annual evaluation. Where a domain rating is absent during differentiated supervision, the employee's most recent comprehensive evaluation should be used for the purposes of calculating the overall rating and for Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) reporting via the Educator Effectiveness Annual Report in the Comprehensive Planning Portal.

#### **Eligibility**

Differentiated supervision may be offered only to professional employees who received a Proficient or Distinguished annual rating in the two years immediately preceding the commencement of a differentiated supervision cycle. Temporary professional employees are ineligible for differentiated supervision. A supervisor may move a professional employee out of differentiated supervision and into comprehensive classroom observation at any time. Additionally, a professional employee may elect to move out of differentiated supervision and enter comprehensive classroom observation at any time.

## **Building Level Data**

Effective with the 2021/2022 school year, the Building Level Score (BLS) for evaluating educator effectiveness will be comprised of available Assessment, Growth, Attendance Rate, and Graduation Rate data and adjusted based on the percentage of economically disadvantaged students enrolled in the school (i.e., challenge multiplier) as follows:

- 1) Calculate the regression coefficient of determination (r2) that estimates the proportion of the variance in school-level data predictable by the percentage of students economically disadvantaged in a school.
- 2) Multiply the regression coefficient of determination by .1.
- 3) Multiply the product by the most currently available percentage of economically disadvantaged students in the school.
- 4) Multiply that product by 100.
- 5) Add the final product to the BLS

Assessment, Growth, Attendance Rate, and Graduation Rate are weighted in accordance with the table below:

ASSESSMENT (Academic Achievement)		PVAAS (Growth)		ATTENDANCE RATE	GRADUATION RATE
English Language Arts	15%	English Language Arts	15%		
Mathematics	15%	Mathematics	15%	10%	10%
Science	10%	Science	10%		

If a building does not have Graduation Rate data, Attendance Rate comprises 20% of the Building Level Score. Conversely, for every tested content area in which a building is missing Assessment9 and/or PVAAS data, the denominator is reduced proportionally. The BLS for a PK-3 school might be:

(30/50 or 60% of the sco	re)			(20/50 or 40% of the score)
Science	N/A	Science	N/A	
Mathematics	15%	Mathematics	N/A	20%
English Language Arts	15%	N/A	N/A	20%
ASSESSMENT (Academic Achievement)		PVAAS (Growth)		ATTENDANCE RATE

For an employee assigned to multiple buildings, a composite Building Level Score is calculated in the rating tool using percentages proportional to the employee's building assignments. By way of example, the BLS for an instructional coach who spends 50% of the time in the middle school (with a BLS of 92) and 50% of the time in the high school (with a BLS of 87) would have a composite BLS of 89.5.

When attributable, building level data comprises 10% of the evaluation of professional employee. Where a BLS is not available, the Observation & Practice rating is substituted; for multiple building assignments, the rating is converted then weighted proportionally to produce the composite BLS.

Building Level Scores and information on how the building level data were derived are published annually, when available, at https://bit.ly/PAedEffective. For information on how a BLS is converted to a rating for the purposes of evaluation, see Rating Tool Conversions.

## Non-Attribution of Building Level Data

Building Level Data (BLD) are not attributed to professional employees serving as classroom teachers or as nonteaching professionals who are primarily assigned in a building or buildings within a school entity by which the professional is not employed.

Additionally, BLD are never attributed to temporary professional employees serving as classroom teachers or as non-teaching professionals; both are evaluated using only the Observation & Practice measure.

## **Transfer Options**

A professional employee who transfers from one building to another within an LEA has the option of using a substitute measure in lieu of BLD for the first two school years of the new location assignment. Before evaluation in the new location assignment, the employee and the LEA must agree on the substitute measure(s) and the reallocation of the 10% weighting for calculating the final performance rating. The following table delineates permissible substitute measures by type of professional employee:

SUBSTITUTE MEASURE(S)	CLASSROOM TEACHER	NON-TEACHING PROFESSIONAL	PRINCIPAL
Observation & Practice	٧	٧	٧
LEA Selected Measures	٧	٧	
Teacher-Specific Data	٧		
Performance Goals			٧

## **Teacher-Specific Data**

Where available and directly attributable to the professional employee serving as a classroom teacher, Teacher Specific Data (TSD) are comprised of Assessment, Growth, and IEP Goals Progress, as delineated in the following table:

	PERCENTAGE C	OF TSD RATING
TEACHER-SPECIFIC DATA	Data-Available Classroom Teacher	Non-Data-Available Classroom Teacher
Assessment	25%	-
Growth	50%	-
IEP Goals Progress	25%	100%

If data for one of the three indicators either are not available or are not directly attributable to the employee, the TSD rating is comprised equally of the remaining two indicators (i.e., 50% each). Where two are not available or attributable, the TSD rating is comprised solely of the remaining indicator (i.e., 100%).

A minimum of one indicator is required to receive a rating for TSD: Assessment, Growth, IEP Goals Progress. If all three indicators are absent or inapplicable, the 10% weighting for Teacher-Specific Data is reallocated to LEA Selected Measures, increasing the significance of that rating area to 20% of the overall performance rating for the classroom teacher.

## Data-Available vs. Non-Data-Available

As with evaluation under Act 82, a professional employee teaching English, language arts, mathematics, science, or other content as assessed by a standardized statewide assessment is considered a data-available classroom teacher. A non-data-available classroom teacher is a professional employee teaching content not assessed by a standardized statewide assessment. Where available data are not directly attributable to the teacher, the data are not included in the Teacher-Specific Data rating and the teacher may be considered as though non-data-available.

By way of example, the TSD rating for a classroom teacher reported only as providing instruction in 12th Grade English and with no directly attributable assessment and/or growth data would be comprised solely of IEP Goals Progress - if IEP Goals Progress data are available and attributable to that teacher. Otherwise, the 10% weighting for Teacher-Specific Data is reallocated to LEA Selected Measures, increasing the significance of that rating area to 20% of the overall performance rating for the classroom teacher.

Conversely, a math specialist who is not the teacher of record but who co-taught an Algebra I course could be considered data-available if the specialist planned, provided, and assessed the instruction of eligible content measured by a state assessment for a sufficient student cohort (see N-Counts) and, for growth, has attributable assessment data for the past three years.

Instructional responsibility as reported by the LEA during the PVAAS Roster verification process should serve as a reference when determining the attribution of available Growth (Value-Added Teacher Report) and assessment data in the evaluation of a classroom teacher. LEAs

should consult with their solicitors prior to removing or changing data, as provided, and in any LEA and employee dispute related to either the provided data or any change to the value.

## **IEP Goals Progress**

Regardless of certification area, each professional employee serving as a classroom teacher is evaluated on student progress toward goals in students' Individualized Education Plans required under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (i.e., IEP Goals Progress) if:

- The teacher provides instruction to a sufficient number of students with IEPs, and
- Those students have similar academic or non-academic IEP Goals to which the teacher contributes data used by the IEP team to monitor student progress.

If the classroom teacher does not meet the conditions set forth above, the weighting is redistributed to assessment and/or growth; or, where no Teacher-Specific Data are available and directly attributable, reallocated to the LEA Selected Measures rating area for the evaluation of that classroom teacher.

To assist in evaluation, the Department has provided the Student Performance Measure: IEP Goals Progress template. The optional-use template is designed to offer increased flexibility in the identification of student need, educator response, and use of qualitative as well as quantitative measures; however, LEAs may elect to utilize other methods or continue with current processes for measuring student objectives. Whichever approach is chosen, a rating of 0, 1, 2, or 3 must be assigned in accordance with Act 13.

LEAs should establish clear and comprehensive policies regarding the attribution of IEP Goals Progress, including, but not limited to, the use of n-counts, the process for identification of IEP Goal(s) and student cohorts prior to evaluation, and consideration of applicability when instructional responsibility changes during the defined evaluation period.

## **N-Counts**

For the purposes of data attribution, an n-count represents the minimum number in a count below which data will not be attributed to a classroom teacher. For Growth data to be attributed to a teacher, there must be:

- At least 11 students who have assessment scores in the tested subject, grade, or course in which the students are enrolled with the teacher during the school year, as evidenced by PVAAS Roster verification, and
- The full-time equivalency of 6 students, calculated by considering the instructional responsibility claimed for each student.

The PVAAS system applies the n-counts13 delineated above. If a Value-Added Teacher Report containing a consecutive three-year rolling average is available in PVAAS, the teacher has met the requirements for attribution of Growth data during evaluation.

Similar to implementation under Act 82, the Department recommends the local application of an n-count when determining the attribution of **Assessment** and **IEP Goals Progress** data; however, as with any action taken by the LEA in relation to the evaluation of a professional employee, this decision should be made in consultation with the LEA's solicitor and in collaboration with the local association. If an LEA chooses to establish a number below which the LEA will not attribute Assessment14 and/or IEP Goals Progress data, that number may not exceed an n-count used for determining the attribution of Growth data as delineated above.

The LEA may assign an n-count based on the actual number of students and/or proportional to instructional responsibility (an 'active' n-count). By way of example, a classroom teacher who instructs 12 students within an identified cohort but only has 25% instructional responsibility reported for each of the 12 students has an active N-count of 3 students ( $12 \times .25 = 3$ ). The LEA also may elect to differentiate n-counts based on instructional setting (e.g., setting a lower n-count for an exclusive environment). Regardless of approach, local policies for data attribution should be clearly articulated and consistently applied across the LEA.

Where an n-count is established, it is applied to the total number of students with similar academic or nonacademic IEP Goals taught by the classroom teacher rather than within a single class or course. By way of example, a math teacher instructs 18 students with IEP Goals in four different courses. All 18 students have math goals, though only 6 have similar math goals while 12 have similar behavioral goals. In an LEA with an actual n-count of 11 students, only the latter student group might be attributable if the teacher also contributes data used by the IEP team to monitor progress of those 12 students toward the similar behavioral goals.

## **LEA Selected Measures**

Minimally, LEA Selected Measures (LEA SM) account for 10% of the annual evaluation of a professional employee serving as a classroom teacher. Where no Teacher-Specific Data are available or attributable, LEA SM comprise 20% of the teacher's annual evaluation. Similar to the use of Elective Data for evaluation under Act 82, LEAs must utilize at least one of the following measures to assess student performance directly attributable to the classroom teacher:

- Locally developed rubrics
- District-designed measures and examinations
- Nationally recognized standardized tests

- Industry certification examinations
- Student projects pursuant to local requirements
- Student portfolios pursuant to local requirements

The classroom teacher provides documented input on the development of LEA Selected Measures and annual data results, which the evaluator must include with other documentation of the teacher's overall rating. In the analysis of the data, teachers shall have the opportunity to reflect on their successes, unanticipated barriers, and any supports that could have been useful. Metrics and measures may be revised mid-academic year, if agreed upon by both the evaluator and the employee and may be reused on an annual basis if the goals are updated and continue to offer reflections for improvement.

To assist in evaluation, the Department has provided the Student Performance Measure: LEA Selected Measure template. The optional-use template is designed to offer increased flexibility in the identification of student need, educator response, and use of qualitative as well as quantitative measures; however, LEAs may elect to utilize other methods or continue with current processes for measuring student objectives. Whichever approach is chosen, LEAs must assign a rating of 0, 1, 2, or 3 in accordance with Act 13. If more than one student need is identified, an SPM template should be completed for each and weighted accordingly; the total weightings may not exceed 100% of the single, summative LEA Selected Measures rating of 0, 1, 2, or 3.

NOTE: LEA Selected Measures are also utilized for the optional Interim Evaluation of a professional employee deemed Unsatisfactory during the prior annual evaluation. Implementation of an LEA Selected Measure as part of an Interim Evaluation should be consistent with the process delineated above.

#### **Performance Goals**

Performance Goals account for 20% of the evaluation of professional employees and temporary professional employees serving in principal roles, including assistant and vice principals, directors of career and technical education, and supervisors of special education. Performance Goals must be determined before the beginning of each school year between the employee and the supervising administrator, referencing the Observation and Practice leadership domains and practice models to inform the focus areas of performance. Goals may be district-specific or building-specific, and the plan of action should include explicit measurable areas and the evidence to be collected during the year.

To assist in evaluation, the Department has provided the Principal Performance Goals template. The optional-use template is designed to offer increased flexibility in the identification of need, response, and use of qualitative as well as quantitative measures; however, LEAs may elect to utilize other methods or continue with current processes for measuring performance objectives.

The principal and supervising administrator must meet mid-point to monitor progress and modify the goals, as necessary. At the conclusion of the school year, the principal and the immediate supervisor shall meet again to evaluate the attainment of Performance Goals and assign a rating in accordance with Act 13. If more than one Performance Goal is used for the evaluation of the employee, the principal and immediate supervisor may establish a weighting for each Performance Goal to produce the single Performance Goal rating of 0, 1, 2, or 3.

#### **EVALUATION PROCESS**

## **Rating Scale**

A rating is assigned to each area of evaluation where the measure is applicable, and data are available and attributable to the employee. Each rating is weighted as appropriate to the employee and the sum converted into a single overall performance rating of Distinguished, Proficient, Needs Improvement, or Failing as delineated in the table below:

SUMMATIVE NUMERICAL RATING	PERFORMANCE RATING	PERFORMANCE DESCRIPTOR
2.50 – 3.00	Distinguished	performance consistently reflects teaching professional position and placement at the highest level of practice
1.50 – 2.49	Proficient	performance consistently reflects practice at a professional level
0.50 - 1.49	Needs Improvement	functioning below proficient performance expectations required for continued employment
0.00 - 0.49	Failing	does not meet performance expectations for the position

The number of employees receiving an overall performance rating of Distinguished may not be limited through local policies, guidelines, communications, or practices; nor may an employee be rated Failing or Needs Improvement based solely on student test scores.

## Satisfactory vs. Unsatisfactory

An overall performance rating of Distinguished or Proficient is considered **Satisfactory**.

An overall performance rating of Needs Improvement is considered **Satisfactory** unless the employee received a **Needs Improvement** rating within the past four years from the same

employer for work performed under the same certification area. In that circumstance, the subsequent overall performance rating of **Needs Improvement** is considered **Unsatisfactory**.

An overall performance rating of Failing is considered **Unsatisfactory**.

## **Performance Improvement Plan**

Act 13 does not limit an employer's authority to design a Performance Improvement Plan; however, an employee who receives an overall performance rating of Failing or Needs Improvement must participate in a Performance Improvement Plan (PIP) designed by the employer with documented input from the employee. The PIP must:

- Provide actionable feedback on the specific domain within the comprehensive observation and practice models that prevented the employee from achieving a Proficient rating, and
- Identify employer resources to be provided to assist the employee in improving performance, including mentoring, coaching, professional development recommendations, and intensive supervision based on the contents of the rating tool.

## **Rating Frequency**

## **Professional Employees**

Professional employees who are considered **Satisfactory** may not be rated more than once during a school year.

Professional employees who are considered **Unsatisfactory**, however, are rated at least once annually. The annual rating is performed using the measures and weighting appropriate to the type of employee evaluated as reflected in rating forms PDE 13-1, PDE 13-2, and PDE 13-3. Any subsequent rating during the same year for a professional employee deemed Unsatisfactory (i.e., an Interim Rating) utilizes 70% Observation & Practice and 30% LEA Selected Measures as reflected in rating form PDE 13-4.

## **Temporary Professional Employees**

Temporary Professional Employees (TPEs) must be rated at least twice annually.

Both the annual and semi-annual ratings of a TPE serving as a classroom teacher or a non-teaching professional are comprised of 100% Observation & Practice. The annual rating of a temporary professional employee serving in a principal role is comprised of the same measures and weightings as a professional employee serving in a principal role. For a semi-annual rating of the TPE serving in a principal role, LEAs should consult with their solicitors when determining mid-year application of building level data.

## **Rating Protocol**

The chief school administrator or the assistant administrator, supervisor, or principal who has supervision over the employee's work performs the employee evaluation and signs the rating form. Unsatisfactory ratings are not valid unless approved and signed by the chief school administrator.

All assigned weightings, ratings, and other information pertinent to the evaluation must be recorded on the rating form. Rating forms must be marked to indicate the employee's status as either a professional employee or a temporary professional employee, the overall performance rating, and whether the final rating is regarded to be Satisfactory or Unsatisfactory. A signed copy of the rating form must be provided to the employee.

Any employee dismissed for unsatisfactory performance must be provided both a completed rating form and the contents of the rating tool, including a description based upon observations of deficiencies in practice supported by detailed anecdotal records that justify the Unsatisfactory rating.

## **Rating Tools**

Rating tools, forms, and related documents provided by the Department for Evaluation of Educator Effectiveness are available at https://bit.ly/PAedEffective and https://pdesas.org/EducatorFrameworks/Educator Effectiveness.

At the request of an LEA, PDE will review for approval an alternative rating tool that has been authorized by the LEA governing board and that meets or exceeds the measures of effectiveness established by the Department. All evaluations of educator effectiveness must be conducted using rating forms either developed or approved by the Department.

## **Maintaining Records & Reporting Data**

LEAs must establish a permanent record system containing the ratings for each employee within the LEA. Employees may not be dismissed for unsatisfactory performance unless rating records have been kept on file by the LEA. Employee rating forms are not subject to disclosure under the Right-to-Know Law nor are they submitted to the Department.

## **Educator Effectiveness Annual Report**

Mid-January, LEAs must complete the Educator Effectiveness Annual Report in the Future Ready Comprehensive Planning Portal (FRCPP), providing aggregate numbers of professional employees and temporary professional employees serving as classroom teachers, principals, and non-teaching professionals who were rated as Distinguished, Proficient, Needs Improvement, or Failing and who were deemed Satisfactory or Unsatisfactory for the prior school year.

To meet federal ESSA requirements, LEAs also must submit the aggregate numbers of classroom teachers found to be Effective or Ineffective using the individual ratings for Domains II (30%), III (30%), and IV (20%) and LEA Selected Measures (20%) and converting the result as follows:

NUMERICAL SCORE	ESSA PERFORMANCE RATING
2.00 – 3.00	Effective
0.00 – 1.99	Ineffective

## TRAINING & PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

## **Training Requirements**

The only training requirements delineated in Act 13 are as follows:

**Local induction programs** must be updated to incorporate training on Educator Effectiveness inclusive of the consistent use of quality evaluation data. To satisfy this requirement:

- Inductees may complete either a locally provided training or the appropriate 5-hour Act 48 course available via the SAS PD Center.

**Temporary Professional Employees (TPEs)** serving as classroom teachers or as non-teaching professionals must participate in training on Educator Effectiveness during their probationary period. To satisfy this requirement:

- TPEs may complete either a locally provided training or the appropriate 5-hour Act 48 course available via the SAS PD Center.

**Newly appointed principals** must participate in training on Educator Effectiveness within the first six months of appointment. To satisfy this requirement:

- Principals, assistant principals, vice principals, and directors of career and technical education must complete the 30-hour PIL course Act 13 & Beyond: School Leaders Driving Instructional Excellence, for which they will receive Act 45 credit.
- Supervisors of special education may complete either the 30-hour PIL course Act 13 & Beyond: School Leaders Driving Instructional Excellence, for which they will receive Act 48 credit, or the appropriate 5-hour Act 48 course available via the SAS PD Center.

All professional employees serving as classroom teachers, non-teaching professionals, and principals must complete a condensed Educator Effectiveness training **every seven years**.

To assist LEAs, the Department partnered with Allegheny Intermediate Unit 3 (AIU3) to provide resources, including presentation slide decks and guides, that may be adopted or adapted for local training.

Although Act 13 does not mandate training other than the requirements listed above, LEAs are encouraged to support transparency by minimally communicating changes to the Educator Effectiveness system prior to evaluation of impacted personnel.

## **Professional Development Opportunities**

The Professional Development (PD) Center in the Department's Standards Aligned System (SAS) portal offers four 5-hour asynchronous facilitated courses designed to address the impact of Act 13 on the Educator Effectiveness Evaluation system:

- Educator Effectiveness: Classroom Teachers
- Educator Effectiveness: Other Non-Teaching Professionals & Educational Specialists
- Educator Effectiveness: Non-Teaching Professional Supervisors
- Educator Effectiveness: Supervisors of Special Education

In addition, approximately 60 Act 48 programs focusing on the domains of practice contained within the framework for evaluating classroom teacher effectiveness have been refreshed to reflect the new guidelines pursuant to Act 13. The asynchronous, facilitated programs range from five to 10 hours, depending on the complexity of the content, and Act 48 hours should be reflected in Pennsylvania's Professional Education Record Management System (PERMS) four weeks after successful course completion.

Courses and programs are accessible at no-cost to registered users in the PD Center located under SAS Tools.

#### RESOURCES

## **Rating Tools**

Four rating tools, comprised of instructions and forms, have been provided by the Department to function as summary records in the evaluation of the effectiveness of professional employees and temporary professional employees. Assigned weighting, ratings, and other information pertinent to the evaluation must be recorded on the rating form, with supporting evidence maintained as part of the permanent evaluation record system.

## PDE 13-1 (Classroom Teacher)

- PDE 13-1 PE: for the annual evaluation of a professional employees serving as classroom teachers
- PDE 13-1 TPE: for the annual/semi-annual evaluation of temporary professional employees serving as classroom teachers

**PDE 13-2 (Principal):** for the annual evaluation of professional employees and the annual/semiannual evaluation of temporary professional employees serving as principals (including assistant and vice principals, directors of career and technical education, and supervisors of special education)

## PDE 13-3 (Non-Teaching Professional)

- PDE 13-3 PE: for the annual evaluation of professional employees serving as non-teaching professionals
- PDE 13-3 TPE: for the annual/semi-annual evaluation of temporary professional employees serving as non-teaching professionals

**PDE 13-4 (Interim Rating):** for the optional, interval evaluation of professional employees deemed Unsatisfactory on the last annual evaluation.

The rating tools are not intended to establish mandates or requirements for the formative process of supervising employees or to limit or constrain the authority of the chief school administrator of an LEA to initiate and take action on a personnel matter, including dismissal of an employee, based on information and data available at the time of the action.

## **Rating Tool Conversions**

The rating tools utilize the following table formulae to convert numerical values for the purposes of calculating a final performance rating.

All quantitative data displays to two decimal places in the rating tools. Where the true value is different than that which is displayed (e.g., a real value of 1.494 and a displayed value of 1.49), the true value is used to determine a single, summative rating for the area of evaluation represented by the worksheet. The single, summative rating for each area of evaluation is truncated to three decimal places then rounded to two decimal places using conventional rules prior to populating the summary rating form worksheet.

Where necessary, the final summary rating is also truncated to three decimal places then rounded to two decimal places using conventional rules prior to determining a final performance rating of Distinguished, Proficient, Needs Improvement, or Failing.

#### BLS TO 0-3 SCALE SCORE

BUILDING LEVEL SCORE	CONVERSION FORMULA	0 – 3 SCALE SCORE RANGE
90.00 - 100.00	(BLS*.05) - 2.0	2.50 - 3.00
70.00 – 89.99	(BLS*.0495248) - 1.96673	1.50 - 2.49
60.00 - 69.99	(BLS*.0990991) - 5.44595	0.50 - 1.49
00.00 - 59.99	BLS*.00816803	0.00 - 0.49

#### O&P RATING TO BLS

OBSERVATION & PRACTICE RATING	CONVERSION FORMULA	BUILDING LEVEL SCORE
2.50 - 3.00	(O&P Rating*20) + 40	90.0 – 100.00
1.50 - 2.49	(O&P Rating*20.1919) + 39.7121	70 .0 – 89.99
0.50 - 1.49	(O&P Rating*10.0909) + 54.9545	60.0 – 69.99
0.00 - 0.49	O&P Rating*122.429	00.0 - 59.99

#### PVAAS SCORE TO 0-3 SCALE SCORE

PVAAS SCORE	CONVERSION FORMULA	0 – 3 SCALE SCORE RANGE
90.00 - 100.00	(PVAAS Score*.05) - 2.0	2.50 - 3.00
70.00 – 89.99	(PVAAS Score*.0495248) - 1.96673	1.50 - 2.49
60.00 - 69.99	(PVAAS Score*.0990991) – 5.44595 0.50 - 1.49	
00.00 - 59.99	PVAAS Score*.00816803	0.00 - 0.49

NOTE: For the conversion to result in the 0-3 Scale Score Range as displayed, the PVAAS Score cannot exceed two decimal places. The conversion result is truncated and rounded to produce an outcome of comparable value to other teacher-specific measures.

ASSESSMENTS % TO 0-3 SCALE SCORE

% PROFICIENT OR ADVANCED	0 – 3 SCALE SCORE
95.00 – 100.00%	3.00
90.00 – 94.99%	2.50
80.00 – 89.99%	2.00
70.00 – 79.99%	1.50
65.00 – 69.99%	1.00
60.00 - 64.99%	0.50
Below 60.00%	0.00

NOTE: Where attributable, the Proficient/Advanced % is available on the Value-Added Teacher Report in PVAAS. Alternatively, LEAs may use a teacher/student roster, a locally-established n-count, and assessment data provided by the Department via Data Interaction/eMetric or the District/Student Data File to inform this measure of evaluation.

0-3 SCALE SCORE TO PERFORMANCE RATING

NUMERICAL SCORE	PERFORMANCE RATING
2.50 – 3.00	Distinguished
1.50 – 2.49	Proficient
0.50 - 1.49	Needs Improvement
0.00 - 0.49	Failing

## Frameworks for Observation and Practice

In accordance with Act 13, the Pennsylvania Department of Education collaborated with various stakeholder groups and consulted with the American Institute for Research to refresh the frameworks for observation and practice provided for the evaluation of educator effectiveness under Act 82. The revised frameworks remain consistent with the original paradigms but include newly incorporated references to commonwealth priorities as delineated in Pennsylvania's ESSA Consolidated State Plan:

- Practices that support **equity** in education (i.e., ensuring every child has an equal chance for success).
- Practices that support **cultural competence** in education (i.e., valuing the diversity among students and designing an educational system to serve all).
- Practices that encourage **inclusion** in education (i.e., providing students with special needs the same educational setting as non-disabled peers, where appropriate).
- Practices that foster **social and emotional learning** (i.e., the process by which students understand and manage emotions and their effect on relationships and decisions).
- Practices that further **career readiness** (i.e., attainment of broad competencies for a successful transition to the workplace).
- Practices that encompass **research-based strategies** (e.g., scaffolding or project-based learning).
- Practices that facilitate synchronous and asynchronous **remote learning** (i.e., when a student is not physically present in a traditional classroom).

There are three frameworks for observation and practice: Classroom Teacher, Principal, and Non-Teaching Professional. The framework for the evaluation of Principals is designed for use with other school leaders as well as supervisors. The framework for the evaluation of Non-Teaching Professionals (NTPs) offers slight modifications in the embedded practice models to assist in rating NTPs with disparate roles and certifications/licensures.

- Framework for Classroom Teacher
- Framework for Principal
- Framework for Non-Teaching Professional Instructional Technology Specialist
  - School Counselor
  - School Health Specialist (Nurse, Dental Hygienist)
  - School Psychologist
  - School Social Worker/Home & School Visitor
  - School Speech & Language Pathologist
  - Other Non-Teaching Professional

## **Approved Alternate Frameworks**

As with evaluation under Act 82, the Department has pre-approved16 the following alternate frameworks for the purpose of assigning a rating to the Observation & Practice measure:

- Danielson Framework for Teaching 2011© (The Danielson Group)
- Danielson Framework for Teaching 2013© (The Danielson Group)

Local consideration should be given as to how alternate practice models support the commonwealth priorities delineated above and represented in Title 22 Chapter 19; therefore, LEAs may reference companion resources that focus on specific practices, such as Danielson's

Framework for Teaching, to supplement, though not supplant, the use of an approved alternate framework in evaluation.

LEAs opting to utilize any of the above bulleted alternate observational frameworks in lieu of a PDE-provided framework are not required to obtain permission from the Department. However, LEAs seeking to develop or employ other frameworks or to modify PDE-provided or approved frameworks must request approval of an alternate rating system; the application must demonstrate the alternate system meets or exceeds the effectiveness of the PDE-provided or approved frameworks and aligns to the weightings of the measure per Act 13.

NOTE: The Department has not pre-approved alternate frameworks for the evaluation of Non-Teaching Professionals and Principals; however, for evaluations performed during the transition year of 21/22, LEAs may utilize the frameworks approved by the Department for use under Act 82.

## **Performance Templates**

Similar to the process under Act 82, three templates are provided to facilitate local evaluation of performance measures. Unlike the process under Act 82, use of the templates is optional for evaluation under Act 13.

The customizable templates offer increased flexibility in the identification of need, response, and use of qualitative as well as quantitative measures; however, LEAs may elect to utilize other methods or continue with current processes for measuring objectives. Whichever approach is chosen, LEAs must assign a rating of 0, 1, 2, or 3 in accordance with Act 13 for the required area of evaluation of educator effectiveness.

Two are <u>Student Performance Measure (SPM)</u> templates, designed to align the identified student challenge or need to related school-level objectives and/or LEA-level priorities, encourage instructional innovation, and improve educator practice.

- The <u>SPM: IEP Goals Progress template</u> may be used in the evaluation of a professional employee serving as a classroom teacher, where the teacher-specific data are available and directly attributable to the employee (see IEP Goals Progress for more information).
- The SPM: LEA Selected Measure template may be used in the evaluation of a professional employee serving as a classroom teacher (see LEA Selected Measures for more information).
  - -- The template also may be used during the Interim Evaluation of a professional employee serving as a classroom teacher, principal, or non-teaching professional whose performance was previously deemed Unsatisfactory.

The Principal Performance Goals template is designed to facilitate active participation in the evaluation process while improving the school leader's effectiveness and fostering collaboration.

• The Principal Performance Goals template may be used in the evaluation of a professional employee or temporary professional employee serving in a principal role, including an assistant principal, vice principal, director of career and technical education, and supervisor of special education (see Performance Goals for more information).

#### REFERENCES

## **Definitions and Terms**

The following are definitions and terms excerpted from Pa. Act 13 of 2020 and Title 22 Chapter 19 of the Pennsylvania Code:

## **Assessment**

The Pennsylvania System of School Assessment test, the Keystone Exams or another test established by the State Board of Education or approved by an act of the General Assembly to meet the requirements of section 2603- B(d)(10)(i) of the Public School Code (24 P.S. § 26-2603-B(d)(10)(i)) and the requirements of the Every Student Succeeds Act (Pub. L. No 114-95) or its successor statute or required to achieve other standards established by the Department for the school or school district.

## **Attendance Rate**

The Average Daily Attendance (ADA) divided by the Average Daily Membership (ADM), where:

- (1) ADA is the total number of days of student attendance divided by the total number of days in the regular school year.
- (2) ADM is the total number of days enrolled (days present plus days absent) divided by the actual total number of student days in the regular school year.

## **Building**

A school or configuration of grades assigned a unique four-digit identification number by the Department.

## **Challenge Multiplier**

An adjustment of the building level score by adding points based on the percentage of economically disadvantaged students enrolled in the school.

## **Chief School Administrator**

An individual employed as a school district superintendent, an executive director of an intermediate unit, or an administrative director of an area career and technical school.

<u>Classroom Teacher</u> A professional or temporary professional employee who provides direct instruction to students related to a specific subject or grade level.

<u>Classroom Walk-Through</u> An observational classroom visit by an evaluator to observe an employee for the purpose of gathering evidence and artifacts to inform the employee's rating. **Comprehensive Classroom Observation** 

An observational classroom visit that includes a pre-conference and post-conference between an evaluator and an employee which may be conducted by telephone or videoconferencing. Upon the mutual agreement of both an evaluator and a professional employee, the requirement of a post-conference may be waived for extenuating circumstances, if the evaluator places written documentation of the comprehensive classroom observation in the professional employee's file. If the extenuating circumstances are raised by the evaluator, a professional employee who does not receive a post-conference shall not receive a rating of needs improvement or failing on the comprehensive classroom observation component of an evaluation. The requirement of a post-conference shall not be waived for a temporary professional employee.

## **Data-Available Teacher**

A classroom teacher who is a professional employee teaching English, language arts, mathematics, science, or other content areas as assessed by an Assessment, including the Pennsylvania System of School Assessment (PSSA) and Keystone Exams.

## **Department**

The Department of Education of the Commonwealth.

## **Differentiated Supervision**

A system of supervision of professional employees that:

- (1) Involves a multi-year cycle in which supervisors complete a comprehensive classroom observation for one annual rating in the professional employee's supervision cycle and in the other years of the cycle collaborate with the professional employee to differentiate supervision by developing individualized goals, learning activities, and measures for the professional employee's growth in one or more areas listed in section 1138.3(a)(1) or (b)(1) of the Public School Code (24 P.S. §§ 11-1138.3(a)(1)) or (b)(1)), a nonteaching professional employee's growth in one or more areas listed in section 1138.5(a) or (b) of the Public School Code (24 P.S. §§ 11-1138.5(a) or (b)).
- (2) Is offered only to professional employees who received a proficient or distinguished annual rating in both immediately preceding years and is not offered to temporary professional employees.
- (3) Is optional for the employer and the professional employee.
- (4) In any year in which the professional employee does not receive a comprehensive classroom observation, uses data sources and data collection strategies designed to measure a professional employee's progress toward the professional employee's individualized professional goals.
- (5) Allows a supervisor to move a professional employee out of individualized professional goals, activities, and measures and into comprehensive classroom observation at any time.
- (6) Allows a professional employee to move out of individualized professional goals, activities and measures and enter comprehensive classroom observation at any time.

## **District-Designed Measures and Examinations Methods**

for evaluating student performance created or selected by a local education agency (LEA).

## **Economically Disadvantaged**

The status of a student as reported by a school district, intermediate unit, or area career and technical school through the Pennsylvania Information Management System (PIMS) and determined based upon poverty data sources such as eligibility for Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, Medicaid, or free or reduced-price lunch, census data, residence in an institution for the neglected or delinquent, or residence in a foster home.

## **Educational Specialist**

A person who holds an educational specialist certificate issued by the Commonwealth, including but not limited to, a certificate in the area of elementary school counselor, secondary school counselor, social restoration, school nurse, home and school visitor, school psychologist, dental hygienist, instructional technology specialist or nutrition service specialist.

## **Evaluator**

Includes the chief school administrator or the chief school administrator's designee who is an assistant administrator, supervisor or principal, has supervision over the work of the professional employee or temporary professional employee being rated and is directed by the chief school administrator to perform the rating.

<u>Graduation Rate</u> The rate submitted by the Department under Every Student Succeeds Act State plan that represents the percentage of students in a school who earn a high school diploma within 4 years.

## Growth

Calculated in the Pennsylvania Value-Added Assessment System (PVAAS) using longitudinal assessment data, growth reflects the level of evidence that a school's students achieved the expected level of advancement over the academic year.

## **IEP Goals Progress**

A measure of growth and student performance for special education students as established in Individualized Education Program (IEP) plans by the LEA IEP team.

#### **Keystone Exam**

An assessment developed or caused to be developed by the Department under 22 Pa. Code § 4.51 (relating to State assessment system).

## **LEA**

A Local Education Agency, including a school district, area career technology and technical center, and intermediate unit, which is required to use a rating tool established under sections 1138.1—1138.16 of the Public School Code (24 P.S. §§ 11-1138.1—11.1138.16).

## **Locally Developed School District Rubrics**

Measures of student performance created or selected by an LEA.

Non-Data-Available Teacher A Classroom Teacher teaching in a content area not assessed by an Assessment. Non-Teaching Professional (NTP) Employee An educational specialist or a

professional employee or temporary professional employee who provides services and who is not a classroom teacher.

## **PVAAS**

Pennsylvania Value-Added Assessment System—A statistical analysis established in compliance with 22 Pa. Code § 403.3 (relating to single accountability system) and used to measure the influence of a district, school, or teacher on the academic progress rates of groups of students from year to year. PVAAS data are made available by the Department under section 221 of the Public School Code (24 P.S. § 2-221).

## **Performance Improvement Plan**

A plan, designed by an LEA with documented input of the employee, that:

(1) Provides actionable feedback to an employee on the specific domain within the comprehensive classroom observation and practice models that prevented the employee from achieving a proficient rating. The employer shall consider the documented input from the employee for inclusion in the plan. (2) Identifies employer resources that will be provided to an employee to help the employee improve. Resources may include, but shall not be limited to, mentoring, coaching, recommendations for professional development and intensive supervision based on the contents of the rating tool provided for under sections 1138.1—1138.16 of the Public School Code.

## **Principal**

Includes a building principal, an assistant principal, a vice principal, a supervisor of special education or a director of career and technical education.

## **Professional Employee**

Shall include those who are certificated as teachers, supervisors, supervising principals, principals, assistant principals, vice-principals, directors of career and technical education, dental hygienists, visiting teachers, home and school visitors, school counselors, child nutrition program specialists, school librarians, school secretaries the selection of whom is on the basis of merit as determined by eligibility lists and school nurses.

## **Rating Scale**

The method by which a value is assigned during the evaluation of a professional employee using the following levels of performance:

- (1) A score of three, or "distinguished," indicates the employee's performance consistently reflects teaching professional position and placement at the highest level of practice.
- (2) A score of two, or "proficient," indicates the employee's performance consistently reflects practice at a professional level.
- (3) A score of one, or "needs improvement," indicates the employee is functioning below proficient for performance expectations required for continued employment.
- (4) A score of zero, or "failing," indicates the employee does not meet performance expectations required for the position.



# Erie's Public Schools Supervision/Evaluation Procedures for Teacher Observations and Practice (Original)

<u>Temporary Professional Employee (TPE)</u> Any individual who has been employed to perform for a limited time the duties of a newly created position or of a regular professional employee whose service has been terminated by death, resignation, suspension or removal.

- It is the expectation of the administration to support all professional teaching staff to reach and maintain proficiency according to the domain rubrics.
- Beginning in the 2016-17 school year, teachers will be eligible to participate in standard or differentiated supervision. (See page 10 for differentiated supervision)
- Administrators will continue to attend inter-rater reliability training throughout the academic year.

## **Informal Observations**

- Walkthroughs
  - o Administrators will conduct walkthroughs throughout the academic year. These may occur at any time during the school day or at any school activity.
  - Walkthroughs are a valuable part of the supervision and evaluation process. These
    informal observations are sources of evidence that will be included in the teacher's
    final end of year evaluation.
  - o In a reasonable timeframe, teachers will be given documentation which may include, but is not limited to: a brief summary of the visit, thoughts and input from the administrator/rater, suggestions for improvement, positive aspects of the lesson, or a general overview of what was observed. This documentation may be in PAETEP or in the form of an email, handwritten note or formal walkthrough form created by the Teacher Observation and Practice committee. A copy of any information collected during the walkthrough will be given to the teacher.

#### **Formal Observations**

- The formal observation period will last at least 30 minutes. The formal observation will be scheduled at a mutually agreeable time and class period.
- Professional educators (tenured teachers) will be formally observed once per year. Temporary educators (non-tenured teachers) will be formally observed twice per year.
- Tenured teachers who are new to a school building or who have changed grade levels will be
  formally observed once each semester (twice a year for their first year in the new building or
  grade level). However, if the administrator/rater has determined the teacher is demonstrating
  proficiency according to the rubrics, he/she may allow the teacher to be formally observed
  once per year. If this determination is made, the administrator will notify the teacher of this
  change.

#### **Pre-conferences**

- Pre-conferences are required for all teachers before the formal observation.
- The teacher will meet with the administrator prior to the formal observation. Preferably, the pre-conference should be held in the teacher's classroom so the teacher may easily provide information to the administrator/rater. However, there may be instances where this is not possible.
- The administrator will ask the teacher to answer pre-conference questions in an effort to generate discussion topics at the pre-conference. These questions will be sent to the teacher in advance of the pre-conference. The teacher will answer the questions and return them to the administrator prior to the pre-conference.
- The purpose of the pre-conference is for the administrator to discuss what he or she will be viewing in the upcoming lesson. This is an opportunity for the teacher to provide evidence in the Planning and Preparation portion of the rubric.

## **Classroom Observation**

- The formal observation will last at least 30 minutes.
- The teacher will be made aware of the time and class period for the observation. This will be a mutually agreeable time and class period between the teacher and administrator/rater.
- During the observation, the administrator/rater will collect evidence primarily in the domains of Classroom Environment and Instruction. However, they may also note evidence in other domains during this observation.
- Formal observations will be completed by the **end of the 3<sup>rd</sup> week of May**.

## **Post-conferences**

- Post-conferences <u>are required</u> for all formal observations.
- The administrator will review the evidence collected during the observation along with the performance rating of the teacher from the domain rubrics.
- Teachers may offer to complete their own self-assessment rubric ratings, but the final performance rating for the observation will be determined solely by the administrator/rater.
- Teachers will need to provide sources of evidence for the domain of Professional Responsibilities during this post conference. A list of suggestions for domain 4 has been provided in the addendum B. These suggestions are not comprehensive, but other sources that are not listed may be provided.
- All post-conferences should be completed within 5 school days of the observation. Exceptions should be agreed upon by both, the teacher and the administrator.

## **Supervision Supports for Employees**

If an administrator identifies an area of concern as a result from informal or formal observations during the current academic year, the teacher will be supported through the use of an Awareness Plan. If a teacher receives a final end of the year performance rating of Needs Improvement or Failing a Performance Improvement Plan will be developed at the beginning of the next academic year.

## **Awareness Plan (Developed during the current school year)**

- This document is created <u>during a current school year</u>, when based upon a collection of evidence from either formal or informal observations, there is an area of concern that could result in a Failing or Needs Improvement performance rating in one of the four domains.
- The main goal of the Awareness Plan is to make the teacher aware of a concern that could result in a Failing or Needs Improvement performance rating in one of the four domains. It is also designed to support the teacher to become proficient according to the domain rubrics.
- The Awareness Plan specifically outlines the area of concern, specific suggestions for improvement and suggested supports for the employee to aid them in demonstrating proficiency.
- The Awareness Plan will be created by the administrator (with input from the teacher) to support the teacher to demonstrate proficiency according to the rubrics. This plan will remain in effect for the entire school year. If the teacher has or is making progress towards proficiency/correction of the area of concern, he or she will be made aware during follow-up meetings discussing this plan. However, the plan will formally remain in effect until the end of the current academic year when the teacher receives their end of year final evaluation.
- The administrator/rater will hold <u>a minimum of two meetings to discuss this plan:</u>
  - The first meeting is to initially review the plan and explain the area of concern, suggested improvements, and supports to the teacher.
  - A second follow-up meeting will be held within 30 days to discuss the teacher's progress on the plan.
  - Additional meetings and supports may be identified if the teacher is not demonstrating proficiency in the area of concern according to the rubrics.

## Performance Improvement Plan (The beginning of the next school year)

- Educational Professionals who receive an <u>overall</u> end of year performance rating of **Needs Improvement or Failing** are required to participate in a **Performance Improvement Plan**.
- A **Performance Improvement Plan** shall be designed with the educator's input addressing the area(s) of concern, recommendations for Professional Development, types of data (evidence) that will be collected to determine improvement, and an observation schedule with ongoing Supervision.
- PDE recommends that an ongoing Supervision timeline is established to implement the Performance Improvement Plan. At the conclusion of the allotted time, the data will be analyzed and used to make a determination of the teacher's level of performance and ultimately their employment status.
- It is recommended that the administrator recruit a colleague such as an assistant principal or the administrator's immediate supervisor in this process to provide additional reliability to the final determination of the teacher's continuation of employment.

- If a teacher receives a <u>final performance rating of Needs Improvement</u>, please see the information below.
  - o If a teacher receives his/her <u>first overall end of year performance rating of Needs</u>
    <u>Improvement</u>, this evaluation will be <u>scored as satisfactory</u>. However, the teacher will be placed on a Performance Improvement Plan for the upcoming academic year.
  - o If a teacher receives <u>a second overall performance rating of Needs Improvement</u> within a ten year period on the same certificate, this evaluation will be considered <u>unsatisfactory</u>. The teacher will then be placed on a Performance Improvement plan for the upcoming school year.
- No teacher may receive an overall performance rating of Needs Improvement or Failing based solely upon student test scores.
- The Performance Improvement Plan will be developed by the administrator with teacher input. It will remain in place for the first four months of the upcoming academic year. After four months the teacher may be formally evaluated again.
- If a teacher receives two consecutive Failing final performance ratings, the teacher will be considered for termination as stated in the ACT 82 legislation.

## **Overall Performance Rating- The Classroom Teacher Rating Form**

- The Pennsylvania Classroom Teacher Rating Form based upon ACT 82 legislation will serve as the final end of year performance rating for an teacher. 50% of this final performance rating is determined by Teacher Observation and Practice (the four domains of Planning and Preparation, Classroom Environment, Instruction and Professional Responsibilities) and 50% Student Performance Data (Building Level Data, Teacher Specific Data and Elective Data). There is a sample Classroom Teacher Rating form completed in the section below.
- Each teacher will receive a final performance rating of 0,1,2,3 for each of the four domains of the Teacher Observation and Practice section (Part A) on the Classroom Teacher Rating Form.
- No teacher may receive a overall performance rating of Needs Improvement or Failing based solely upon student test scores.
- This Classroom Teacher Rating Form, section or chapter may not be construed to limit or constrain the authority of the chief school administrator of the LEA to initiate and take action on a personnel matter, including dismissal of the classroom teacher, based on information and data available at the time of action.
  - When a single gross deficiency or a single incident is sufficiently serious, it will <u>warrant</u> an immediate Unsatisfactory rating.
- The domain rubric scores in Part A of the Classroom Teacher Rating Form will be scored based upon a preponderance of evidence using a variety of sources, but not limited to the items listed below:
  - At least one formal observation, multiple sources of evidence from walkthroughs, lesson plans, unit plans, teacher reflections, meetings with the teacher, written feedback from the administrator, informal observations, and other sources of evidence provided by the teacher or administrator.
- The administrator/rater will determine the teacher's overall end of year rating performance in Teacher Observation and Practice using the rubrics found below.

• The administrator will review all of the evidence collected to determine the overall performance final rating (0,1,2,3) for each domain by using the rubrics found in PDE SAS (<a href="https://www.pdesas.org/Frameworks/TeacherFrameworks/TeacherEffectiveness/">https://www.pdesas.org/Frameworks/TeacherFrameworks/TeacherEffectiveness/</a>) There are specific rubrics for Classroom Teacher and NTPE (Non-Teaching Professional).

# **APPENDIX A**

# **EPS SCHOOL DISTRICT FORMS**

## **Awareness Plan**

Teacher:	Plan Beginr	Plan Beginning Date:				
School:	Administrator:					
Domain: Planning and Preparation Responsibilities	Classroom Environment	Instruction	Professional			
<b>Specific Area of Concern</b> : Please indic the area of concern.	ate the specific component fro	m the rubric as we	ell as a summary of			
Suggestions for Improvement:						
Identify Supports Offered by the Adn	ninistrator/Rater:					
Supervisor Date		Teacher D				

## **Meeting Documentation**

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	cussion related to the items in the Awareness Plan. Please make ed. A minimum of two meetings are required.
Initial Meeting Date:	Individuals Present:
Summary Notes of the Meeting and	Supports Offered: (Review and discuss the plan)
Follow-Up Meeting Date (within 30	days) : Individuals Present:
Summary Notes of the Meeting and	Supports Offered: (Report of progress on the plan)
	Additional Meetings
Date:	Individuals Present:
Summary Notes of the Meeting:	
Date:	Individuals Present:
Summary Notes of the Meeting:	

# Performance Improvement Plan.

Teacher:		Administrator:						
School:		Plan Beginning Date:						
The teacher is being placed on this plan because he/she had received an overall performance rating of (circle one): <b>Needs Improvement or Failing</b> for the school year. The overall performance rating of Needs Improvement or Failing was given to the teacher on								
Briefly describe the Improvement.	area of concern that	led to the overall performance rating	of Failing or Needs					
Suggestions for Imp	rovement							
Resources Needed								
Timeline and Data to	o be Collected							
Supervisor	Date	Teacher	Date					

#### **Meeting Documentation**

Briefly list dates and topics of discussion related to the items discussed in Performance Improvement Plan. A minimum of one meeting will be held every thirty days to offer feedback and progress on this plan. Frequency of these meetings may be increased based upon teacher's performance. Individuals Present: \_\_\_\_\_ **Summary Notes of the Meeting:** Individuals Present: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_ **Summary Notes of the Meeting:** Individuals Present: \_\_\_\_\_ **Summary Notes of the Meeting:** Individuals Present: \_\_\_\_\_

**Summary Notes of the Meeting:** 

40

## **APPENDIX B**

# SUGGESTION OF EVIDENCE DOMAIN 4

The following are suggestions (but not limited to) of items to show as evidence/artifacts for Domain 4

## Domain 4: Professional Responsibilities

#### 4a: Reflecting on teacher and student learning

- Lesson Plans – Two consecutive weeks each quarter which shows notes and adjustments to plans based on student performance

Specific examples of how the lesson was adjusted based on evidence

Formative assessment used

Collaborative work with colleagues

Other resources

- Written documentation – Self reflection

Summary of suggestions for improvement/change/enhancement for future teaching

#### 4b: System for managing students' data

Grade book

Rubrics used on assessments

How student data was used for planning

Student assessment of their data

Updates on parent portal

Student progress/regress through portfolios/folders

Student completion of assignments

- PSSA/Keystone Data Benchmark assessment

**CDTs** 

4Sight

Non-instructional records

Behaviors (BEST or SAP) referrals

Emails to support staff

#### 4c: Communicating with families

- Communication with families (Verbal and Written)

Parent Log

Newsletter home

Progress reports

Invitation to special events

Updates on parent portal

#### 4d: Participating in a professional community

- Professional Learning Community information

Sign in sheet

Agenda

Material used – handouts, books read and discussed

Professional notes

- Professional emails to colleagues
- School/District contributions

**Projects** 

Peer Collaborations

Lead Professional Development

In school building

District wide

#### 4e: Growing and developing professionally

- Professional Development

Participation in School district PD

Handouts

Sign in sheet

Agendas

**Professional Notes** 

Follow up initiation of work

Leading PD

Handouts

Sign in sheets

Agendas

**Professional Notes** 

College Courses and ACT 48 courses currently taking

- EDUCATIONAL AFFILIATIONS

Professional Membership

**Professional Magazines** 

Teacher's written summary for professional growth and future implication

- Action research

Hypothesis

Conclusion

- Feedback

Data

Surveys

- Activities contributing to the profession

List of Committee participation

Agendas

Handouts

Professional notes

List of School event participation – Before and after school

Program books

Receipts

Admission stubs

Photos

Correspondence with the community

#### 4f: Showing professionalism

- Student advocate

BEST/SAP team referral

List of meeting with parents and outcomes

List of school event participation

- Leadership role with colleagues
- Being available

Document time and activity

- Research presentation
- Major educational decisions

Document the important decision and why it was made (rationale)

Document outcome of decision

#### **APPENDIX C**

(Hyperlinked and URL listed)

## **Frameworks for Observation and Practice**

https://pdesas.org/Frameworks/TeacherFrameworks/TeacherEffectiveness/

and

**Performance Templates** 

https://pdesas.org/Frameworks/TeacherFrameworks/TeacherEffectiveness/

## **APPENDIX D**

**Original Glossary** 

#### Glossary

**Alternative Evaluation Plan**—An Individual School District Evaluation Plan (Must be approved by PDE).

Assessment—The term shall mean the Pennsylvania System of School Assessment test, the Keystone Exam, an equivalent local assessment of another test established by the State Board of Education to meet the requirements of section of 2603-B (d)(10)(i) and required under the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 (Public Law 107-110, 115 Stat. 1425) or its successor statute or required to achieve other standards established by the Department of the school or school district under 22 Pa. Code § 403.3 (relating to single accountability system)

**CDT**—Classroom Diagnostic Tools

**Chief School Administrator**—An individual who is employed as a school district superintendent, an executive director of an intermediate unit, or a chief school administrator of an area vocational-technical school or career technology center.

**Classroom Teacher**—A professional or temporary professional employee who provides direct instruction to students related to a specific subject or grade level and usually holds one of the following:

- Instructional I Certificate (see § 49.82)
- Instructional II Certificate (see § 49.83)
- Vocational Instructional I Certificate (see § 49.142), and
- Vocational Instructional II Certificate (see § 49.143)

**Department**—The Department of Education of the Commonwealth

**Differentiated Supervision Model**—Used by schools to diversify evaluations of Instructional II Staff.

**Direct Instruction**—The planning and providing of instruction, and assessment of the effectiveness of that instruction.

**Distinguished**—The employee's performance consistently reflects teaching at the highest level of practice.

**District-designed measures and examinations, and locally developed school district rubrics**—A measure of student performance created or selected by an LEA. The development or design of the measure shall be documented via a Student Learning Objective.

**Employee**—A person who is a professional employee or temporary professional employee.

**Educator Effectiveness**—The program developed by PDE to improve teaching and learning.

**EVAAS**<sup>TM</sup>--Education Value-Added Assessment System is the methodology used for PVAAS.

**Failing**—The employee does not meet performance expectations required for the position.

**Keystone Exam**—An assessment developed or caused to be developed by the Department pursuant to 22 PA. Code § 4.51 (relating to state assessment system).

**LEA**—A local education agency, including a public school district, area vocational-technical school, career technology center and intermediate unit, which is required to use a rating tool established pursuant to section 1123 of the Public School Code (24 P. S. § 11-1123)

**Needs Improvement**—The employee is functioning below proficient for performance expectations required for continued employment

Overall Performance Ratings—Distinguished, Proficient, Needs Improvement, Failing

**PDE**—Pennsylvania Department of Education

**Performance Improvement Plan**—District plan to improve performance of professional employees based on contents of the rating tool for ratings of failing and needs improvement with the evaluator and employee input

**Principal**—An individual who is certified as a building principal, an assistant principal, a vice principal or a director of vocational education.

**Proficient**—The employee's performance consistently reflects practice at a professional level.

**PSSA**—The Pennsylvania System of School Assessment established in 22 Pa. Code § 4.51 (relating to state assessment system).

**PIL**—Pennsylvania Inspired Leadership Program

**PIMS**—Pennsylvania information Management System

**PPID**—Pennsylvania Personal Identification Number

**PVAAS**—The Pennsylvania Value-Added Assessment System established in compliance with 22 Pa. Code § 403.3 (relating to single accountability system) and its data made available by the Department under Section 221of the Public School Code (24 P.S. § 2-221).

**Rating Tool**—An instrument used to determine an evaluation.

Rubric—Information used to determine an evaluation.

**SAS**—Standards Aligned System

# APPENDIX E RATING FORMS

## 13-1

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania			DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION				333 Market St., Harrisburg, PA 17126-0333			
Classroom Teacher Rating Form										
PDE 13-1										
Name:	-									
District/LEA	District/LEA: Erie SD School: [Eagle's Nest ▼									
Rating Date		Evaluation	(Check On	ie)		(	○ Semi-Annual ○ Annual			
(A) Teacher Observation and Practice										
Domain Title *Rating			g* (A) 🕜 Factor (B) Ear		rned Points (A x B)	Max Points	oints *Domain Rating Assignment* 0 to 3 Point Scale (A)			
							Rating Value			
							Failing 0			
I.	Planning & Preparation		20	%	0.00	0.60				
II.	Classroom Environment		30	%	0.00	0.90				
III.	Instruction		30	%	0.00	0.90	Distinguished 3			
IV.	Professional Responsibilities		20	%	0.00	0.60	0			
	Tea	cher Observation 8	Practice Ra	ating	0.00	3.00	0			
(B) Studen	Performance - Building Level Score, Teacher Sp	ecific Data, LEA Se	lected Meas	sures						
Building Level Score										
B.1 Building Level Score Converted to 3 Point Rating 0.00 B.3 LEA Selected Measures ()										
Classroom	Teacher Summative Rating (All Measures)									
Measure Rating (C) Factor (D)					Earned Points	Max Poin	ints Conversion to Performance Rating			
Teacher Observations & Practice Rating			0.00 70%		0.000	2.100	Total Earned Points Rating			
Building Le	vel Score/Substitute Measure(s)	0.00	)	10%	0.000	0.300	0 0.00 - 0.49 Failing			
Teacher Specific Data/Substitute Measure(s) 0.00 10%				10%	0.000	0.300	0 0.50 - 1.49 Needs Improvement			
LEA Selected Measures 0.00 10%					0.000	0.300	0 1.50 - 2.49 Proficient			
Total Earned Points 0 3.00 2.50 - 3.00 Distinguished										
Performance Rating Failing										
○ Rating: Professional Employee Or ○ Rating: Temporary Professional Employee										
I certify that the above-named employee for period beginning 07/01/2022 and ending has received a performance rating of.										
○ Distinguished ○ Proficient ○ Needs Improvement ◎ FAILING										
resulting in a final rating of:										
	O Satisfactory O Unsatisfactory									
Distinguished, Proficient, or Needs Improvement shall be considered Satisfactory. Falling shall be considered Unsatisfactory. A second Needs Improvement issued by the same employer within 4 years of the first where the employee is in the same certification shall be considered										

Unsatisfactory.

# **13-3**

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania			DEPAI	DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION				333 Market St., Harrisburg, PA 17126-0333			
Non Teaching Professional Rating Form											
PDE 13-3											
Name:											
District/LEA: Erie SD Schoot. Pfeiffer-Burleigh School ▼											
Rating Date Semi-Annual O Annual											
(A) Non Teaching Professional Observation and Practice											
Domain	Domain Title *Rating* (A) ?		(A) Pactor (B)	Factor (B) Earned Points (A x B)		Max Poin	nts	*Domain Rating Assignment* 0 to 3 Point Scale (A		(A)	
								Rating		Value	
								Failing		0	
I.	Planning & Preparation	1	25 %		0.00	0.75		Needs Improvement		1	
II.	Educational Environment	0	25 %		0.00	0.75		Proficient		2	
III.	Delivery of Service	0	25 %		0.00	0.75		Distinguished		3	
IV.	Professional Development	0	25 %		0.00	0.75					
	Non Teachir	ng Professional Obser	vation and Practice Ratin	g	0.00	3.00					
(B) Student	Performance			'		,					
Building Le	vel Score	O Single Bldg C	No Score ○Multiple B	ldgs 🔾 Transfe	er 🕜	0					
Building Le	vel Score Converted to 3 Point Rat	ing				0.00	0				
Non Teachi	ng Professional Effectiveness Ratir	ng - All Measures				·					
Measure Rating (C) Factor (D) Earned Poir					Earned Points	ts Max Poir	nts	Conversion to Performance Rating			
Non Teaching Professional Observation and Practice Rating			0.00	90%	0.000	2.700	)	Total Earned Points	Rating		
Building Level Score/Substitute Measure(s)			0.00	10%	0.000	0.300	)	0.00 - 0.49	Failing		
			Total	Earned Points	0	3.00		0.50 - 1.49	Needs Improvement		
1.50 - 2.49 Proficient											
2.50 - 3.00 Distinguished										ished	
Performance Rating Failing								ng			
O Rating: Professional Employee Or						OF	Rating: Temporary Professional Employee				
I certify that the above-named employee for period beginning 07/01/2022   and ending has received a performance rating of:											
○ Distinguished ○ Proficient ○ Needs Improvement ◎ FAILING											
resulting in a final rating of:											
○ Satisfactory ○ Unsatisfactory											
Distinguished, Proficient, or Needs Improvement shall be considered Satisfactory. Failing shall be considered Unsatisfactory. A second Needs Improvement issued by the same employer within 4 years of the first where the employee is in the same certification shall be considered Unsatisfactory.											

52